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Application: Young Women's College Prep Charter
School
Barbara Hasler - bhasler@youngwomenscollegeprep.org
2022-2023 Annual Report

Summary

ID: 0000000126
Last submitted: Oct 30 2023 04:20 PM (EDT)
Labels: Board of Regents

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is collected in a
survey format within the Annual Report Portal. When entering information in the portal, some of the following items
may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related items.

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2022-2023 school year are not required to complete or

submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the other tasks

assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover page task,

please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2023) or you may not be assigned the correct

tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME

(Select name from the drop down menu)

YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 800000071083

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/
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a1. Popular School Name

YWCP

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2023)

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2023 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks.

BOARD OF REGENTS

c. School Unionized

Is your charter school unionized?

No

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

GREECE CSD

e. Date of Approved Initial Charter

Sep 13 2011

f. Date School First Opened for Instruction

Aug 21 2012
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g. Approved School Mission and Key Design Elements

(Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only)

Mission Statement:

Young Women's College Prep Charter School of Rochester (YWCP) will offer young women from the city of

Rochester and Monroe county the opportunity to learn in a single gender environment where a central focus is

placed on preparation for college enrollment and graduation. High expectations and evidence of concrete results

define the students academic experience. Educators commit to, and thrive upon, sharing effective practices within

and beyond the school building. YWCP partners with families, and

instills in each student the sense of community , responsibility, an ethics. We support students in their endeavors to

achieve excellence in and out of the classroom, helping them to develop the strong voices they will need to be

leaders.

Key Design Element #1:

Single Gender: All girls school YWCP believes in educating the whole girl and meeting individual needs. A single

gender school offers students the opportunity to learn in an

environment free from cultural and gender stereotypes, as well as many pressures and

distractions typical of a co- educational school.

Key Design Element #2:

Focus on College Preparation:

College is the lens through which YWCP students view their education, beginning with 7th grade orientation and

continuing through senior year. Every grade level has at least two college visits a year, as well as ongoing college

and career programming through our advisory curriculum. Upperclassmen are provided individualized opportunities

to

explore colleges, career and college fairs, job shadowing and additional college and career

focused opportunities. Our comprehensive counseling program is designed to create and

support a college going culture. This includes guiding every student and her family through the complex

admissions and financial aid process. Students are exposed to college and career through the following innovative

programs:

• 7th & 9th grade Summer Bridge Programs

• Cool Women, Hot Jobs 40+ professional women share their experience with YWCP students

• Summer camps and internships

• College exploration through college trips

Counseling program designed to support and create a college going culture

• Support for teacher professional development

Advisory training and support college and career programming through our advisory
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curriculum.

Upperclassmen are provided individualized opportunities to explore colleges, career and college fairs, job

shadowing and additional college and career focused opportunities. Our

comprehensive counseling program is designed to create and support a college going culture. This includes

guiding every student and her family through the complex

admissions and financial aid process.

Key Design Element #3:

Small School Engaged in Leadership Development

YWCP has placed a strong emphasis on educating the whole girl and ensuring college readiness. The YWCP

Advisory program is designed to support well rounded, conscientious, driven individuals by emphasizing the

development of social and life skills.

YWCP is committed to knowing every student personally, intellectually, and emotionally. Students learn how to lead

and work collaboratively with others. They engage in projects that build their leadership skills, improve their ability to

work as part of a team, and increase their ability to positively impact their community.

Key Design Element #4

Faculty:

YWCP's teachers have consistently demonstrated their commitment to collaborative learning and are invested in

their own professional development and growth. Curriculum development and professional development are

consistently aligned with this element and will continue to foster growth.

Our instructional coaches working side by side with teachers planning, modeling and refining, are key to this work,

as are the talented and dedicated administrators in place.

Key Design Element #5:

Professional Development and Leadership:

Professional development is an integral part of YWCP's culture and teaching strategies. During the school year,

YWCP devotes Friday afternoons every week to directly respond to emerging student data, including evaluation of

lesson plans, teaching strategies, and sharing effective practices. In August, teachers prepare their classrooms

and come together with the administration to work and plan in dedicated sessions. All staff receive support and

coaching. This emphasis reflects the academic goals of the school and the commitment to developing all faculty so

they feel confident as highly skilled experts.

Key Design Element #6

Knowledge Management:

YWCP’s common vocabulary refers to sharing data, best practices, and otherwise communicating about students

and the school as “knowledge management.” Ensuring this process runs well is a responsibility of every adult in the

building. Knowledge management emphasizes a common language and a structure for documenting and

organizing knowledge allowing for continuous

learning and improvement.
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h. School Website Address

youngwomenscollegeprep.org

i. Total Approved Charter Enrollment for 2022-2023 School Year

410

j. Total Enrollment on June 30, 2023 - excluding Pre-K program enrollment

350

k. Grades Served

Grades served during the 2022-2023 school year (exclude Pre-K program students):

Use the CTRL button to select multiple grades to accurately capture every grade level served.

Responses Selected:

7

8

9

10

11

12

https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/
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l. Charter Management Organization

Do you have a Charter Management Organization?

No

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2023-2024?

No, just one site.

     

School Site 1 (Primary)

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/definecmo.pdf
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m1. SCHOOL SITES

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Physical

Address

Phone

Number

District/CSD Grades to be

Served at Site

for previous

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Grades to be

Served at Site

for coming

year (K-5, 6-9,

etc.)

Receives

Rental

Assistance for

Which Grades

(If yes, enter

the

appropriate

grades. If no,

enter No).

Site 1

133 Hoover

Drive

ROchester,

New York

14615

585-254-0320 Greece 7-12 7-12 No

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Sheri Webber Principal 585-254-0320

Operational

Leader
Roberta McInnis

Director of

Operations
585-254-0320

Compliance

Contact
Sheri Webber Principal 585-254-0320

Complaint

Contact
Roberta McInnis

Director of

Operations
585-254-0320

DASA

Coordinator
Karla Hatley

Wellness

Coordinator
585-254-0320

Phone Contact

for After Hours

Emergencies

Sheri Webber Principal 585-254-0320
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m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space?

Private Space

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 1 if

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection.   Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2023.

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2023-2024,

submit a current fire inspection certificate.

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the Annual Report,

please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on November 1, 2023. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

Certificate of Occupancy.pdf

Filename: Certificate of Occupancy.pdf Size: 151.3 kB

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes.

Fire Inspection Report May 2023.pdf

Filename: Fire Inspection Report May 2023.pdf Size: 675.4 kB

n. List of owned, rented, leased facilities not used to educate students

Separate by semi-colon (;)

None

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/224708008/7949950871/Certificate%20of%20Occupancy.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/rg/224708008/7949952278/Fire%20Inspection%20Report%20May%202023.pdf
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CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR

o. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2022-2023 school year? (Please include

approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions).

Please note, listing the revisions here does not constitute a request. Schools are advised to seek revision requests

through their authorizer directly.

No

ATTESTATIONS

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone number with an

extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at the end of the phone number

refers to the individual's phone extension.  Do not type in the work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the

dash and the extension number after the phone number).

Name Barbara Hasler

Position HR & Data Coordinator

Phone/Extension 585-254-0320-2190

Email bhasler@youngwomenscollegeprep.org

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that all

of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with

all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented,

that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter.   Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on

your PC or the stylus on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Yes

mailto:bhasler@youngwomenscollegeprep.org
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As outlined in ENTRY 10:

Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that our

school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee clearance and fingerprint requirements

as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click  YES  to

agree.

Responses Selected:

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf
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Date

Jul 11 2023

Thank you.

Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School Website
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item
5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the
link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1]
2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents;
3. New York State School Report Card;
4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, NYCDOE,

and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 
5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response

Plan Memo;  
6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post on their
respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to include
accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the August deadline (i.e.,
Repost when financials have been submitted in November.)

Form for Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School
Website
School Name:   Young Women's College Prep Charter School  

https://www.p12.nysed.gov/sss/documents/EmergencyResponsePlanMemo2021-22_final.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/2014%20Subject%20Matter%20List.pdf
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item

4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the

link from the school’s website for each of the items:

New York State Report Card

Emergency Response Plan Memo

NYSED Subject Matter List

Link to Documents

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2022-2023 Annual

Report)

https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-

content/uploads/2023/07/young-womens-prep-

ar2122.pdf

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/about-us/board-

of-trustees/

3. New York State School Report Card https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-

Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents,

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools

ONLY)

https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-

content/uploads/2021/07/FINALDignityForAllStudentsct

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety

plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response

Plan Memo

https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-

content/uploads/2022/08/21-22-Emergency-Response-

Plan.pdf

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-

content/uploads/2019/04/YWCP-PolicyManual.pdf

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See

NYSED Subject Matter List)

https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-

content/uploads/2020/10/Subject-Matter-List.pdf

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
Completed - Oct 24 2023

https://data.nysed.gov/
https://www.p12.nysed.gov/sss/documents/EmergencyResponsePlanMemo2021-22_final.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/2014%20Subject%20Matter%20List.pdf
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/young-womens-prep-ar2122.pdf
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/about-us/board-of-trustees/
https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/FINALDignityForAllStudentsct
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/21-22-Emergency-Response-Plan.pdf
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/YWCP-PolicyManual.pdf
https://youngwomenscollegeprep.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Subject-Matter-List.pdf
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Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY  

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE
authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their
currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked
optional for administrative purposes only.
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter,

and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all  goals no later than

November 1, 2023.

     

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE

authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their

currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student

Performance Goal

Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of

Goal

Goal - Met, Not Met

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Academic Goal 1

Improve student

achievement on

NYS ELA 7-8 ELA

assessment & 7th

grade NYS

Mathematics and 8th

grade Algebra

Regents

examination

We will utilize the

NWEA Map

assessments, IXL,

and locally

developed common

formative

assessments to

evaluate progress

towards this goal.

Additionally, ELA

and Mathematics

classes will have two

teachers to better

address high needs,

to target instructional

practices and to

provide

individualized and

small group support.

Informal and formal

data will be analyzed

and will inform

instructional

decisions and further

support needed.

Met

Academic Goal 2 Refinement of the

curriculum for all core

content areas which

is spiraled

throughout grades

7-12

Using student

achievement data,

social emotional

learning goals, and

alignment to the

NYSLS, we have

strategically

organized the

spiraled 7th-12th

grade curriculum into

Met
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two grade bands: 79

and 10-12. Our

curriculum is

vertically spiraled

with an emphasis on

gap-closing,

preparation, and

rigor.

The focus remains

on the highest

priority standards

relative to the NYS

3-8 Assessments in

Math and ELA and

the five Regents

Examination

required for

graduation.

Additionally, we

continue to develop

a shared

understanding of a

common language

and practices for

skills, vocabulary,

critical reading and

writing.

We developed

spiraled common

formative

assignments aligned

to priority standards

in all content areas.

We continue to

measure student

growth toward the

79 and 10-12 goals

by utilizing student

data-including

formative

assessment data-

teacher evaluations,

and instructional

coaching to measure

progress.
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Academic Goal 3

Increase cohort

proficiency levels on

NYS Regents

examinations.

We will utilize the

NWEA Map

assessments, IXL,

and locally

developed common

formative

assessments to

evaluate progress

towards this goal.

Additionally mock

Regents

examinations will be

given and data

gathered will be

utilized to identify

implications for

instruction, curricular

shifts, goal setting,

and focus areas.

Met

Academic Goal 4

Academic Goal 5

Academic Goal 6

Academic Goal 7

Academic Goal 8

Academic Goal 9

Academic Goal 10

2. Do have more academic goals to add?

No
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4. ORGANIZATION GOALS

For the 2022-2023 school year, any organization goals that
cannot be evaluated due to school closure resulting in a lack
of data and changes in testing, surveying, and other usual
practices should be reported as “N/A”.
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Unable to Assess

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal. If

unable to assess

goal, type N/A for

Not Applicable

Org Goal 1

Articulate the YWCP

Way related to

enrollment by

refining and

implementing a

coherent plan for

student recruitment,

enrollment, and

retention.

Progress will be

measured based

upon the creation of

process documents,

data collection

standardization, and

quarterly review of

progress. With

enhanced and

historic data

collection, we will be

able to strategically

utilize data to inform

best practices and

goal setting.

Met

Org Goal 2 Develop and

implement a

differentiated or

tiered supervision

and evaluation

process, which

includes instructional

coaching.

Progress will be

measured based

upon the completion

of the process.

Artifacts from the

entire teacher

evaluation process

will be stored in

eDoctrina.

At the end of the

Supervision and

Evaluation cycle,

teachers will reflect

on the process and

their goals.

A short survey

regarding the

instructional coach

model will be

administered to

Met
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collect data and

inform practices for

the upcoming school

year.

Org Goal 3

Org Goal 4

Org Goal 5

Org Goal 6

Org Goal 7

Org Goal 8

Org Goal 9

Org Goal 10

Org Goal 11

Org Goal 12

Org Goal 13

Org Goal 14

Org Goal 15

Org Goal 16

Org Goal 17

Org Goal 18

Org Goal 19

Org Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational goals to add?

No

6. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to

Evaluate Progress

Goal - Met, Not Met,

or Partially Met

If not met, describe

efforts the school will

take to meet goal.

Financial Goal 1

Maintain cash

position with no

debt.

Net cash position

and debt position.
Met

Financial Goal 2

Maintain fidelity to

board-approved

FY23 budget

Change in net

assets consistent

with board-approved

FY23 budget.

Met

Financial Goal 3

No material

weaknesses

identified in the

annual audit.

Clean audit report

for FY23 free of

material

weaknesses.

Met

Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

7. Do have more financial goals to add?

No

Thank you.

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports
Incomplete - Hidden from applicant

Instructions
SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at Accountability
Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the document into the Annual
Report Portal, and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system by September 15, 2023.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements
Completed - Oct 30 2023

http://www.newyorkcharters.org/accountability/
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Required of ALL Charter Schools

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in PDF format
into the Annual Report Portal and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system no later than November
1, 2023. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as password protection
are turned off.

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited financial
statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2023. Upload the independent auditor’s report,
any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as one submission, combined into a PDF file,
ensuring that security features such as password protections are removed from all school uploaded documents.

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1 2023 but will
be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2023. This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester 2023 Financial Statements

Filename: Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter__LvvIdjZ.pdf Size: 521.3 kB

Entry 4a – Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY)
Incomplete - Hidden from applicant

Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Statement Template” at
http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the document into the Annual Report
Portal and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system no later than November 1, 2023.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE)
Completed - Oct 30 2023

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report
Template” from the online portal or the 2022-2023 Annual Reports webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel
format and submit by November 1, 2023.

Please complete one spreadsheet at the Education Corporation level and submit the same spreadsheet for
each of the schools. 

EDUCATION CORPORATIONS WITH MORE THAN ONE SCHOOL SHOULD COMPLETE THE EXCEL
SPREADSHEET FOR THE EDUCATION CORPORATION AS A WHOLE, NOT FOR THE INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS.
 PLEASE SUBMIT THE SAME EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR EACH OF THE SCHOOLS.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Young Women's College Prep Audited Financial Report 2023-2024

Filename: Young_Womens_College_Prep_Audited_uy7VIIY.xlsx Size: 459.3 kB

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents
Completed - Oct 30 2023

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial documents and submit by
November 1, 2023. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an explanation if not applicable or available.
For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because the school did not expend federal funds of more than
the $750,000 Threshold.”

1. Advisory and/or Management letter

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832577/28672399/Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter__LvvIdjZ.pdf
http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832579/28672416/Young_Womens_College_Prep_Audited_uy7VIIY.xlsx
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2. Federal Single Audit
3. Agreed-Upon Procedure Report
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1]
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per school is
$100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester 2023 Financial Statements

Filename: Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter__iVIMMbs.pdf Size: 521.3 kB

Young Women's College Prep Escrow Account Statement Sept

Filename: Young_Womens_College_Prep_Escrow_A_vYL3H9g.pdf Size: 12.2 kB

Entry 4d - Financial Contact Information
Completed - Oct 30 2023

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information directly into the
form within the portal by November 1, 2023.

Form for "Financial Contact Information"

     

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal

Contact Name

School Based Fiscal

Contact Email

School Based Fiscal

Contact Phone

Roberta McInnis
rmcinnis@youngwomensc

ollegeprep.org
585-254-0320

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact

Name

School Audit Contact

Email

School Audit Contact

Phone

Years Working With

This Audit Firm

Karen Lynch
klynch@bonadio.co

m
585-249-2746 11

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832580/28672451/Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter__iVIMMbs.pdf
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832580/28672454/Young_Womens_College_Prep_Escrow_A_vYL3H9g.pdf
mailto:rmcinnis@youngwomenscollegeprep.org
mailto:klynch@bonadio.com
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3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact

Person

Mailing

Address

Email Phone Years With

Firm
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Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget
Completed - Oct 30 2023

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2023-2024 Budget and Quarterly Report Template and the
2023-2024 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the completed templates into the
Annual Report Portal and into the Epicenter document management system. Due November 1, 2023.

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the school’s FY22
Budget using the 2023-2024 Budget Template into the Annual Report Portal or from the Annual Report website. Due
November 1, 2023.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-explanatory.
Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that indicates the assumption
being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the
application narrative.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Young Women's College Prep Charter School Final Budget 2023-2024

Filename: Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter_KLsoQUR.xlsx Size: 164.4 kB

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education corporation
governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2022-2023 school year must complete and sign a
Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form is due on August 1, 2023. Acceptable signature formats include: 

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign)
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. upload
into portal)

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The education
corporation is responsible for ensuring that each member who served on the board during the 2022-2023
school year completes the form. 

Charter schools must submit the latest version of the form. Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to complete a
separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the governing education
corporation. 

Final Disclosure Forms

Filename: Final_Disclosure_Forms.pdf Size: 3.4 MB

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions

Required of ALL charter schools

https://www.newyorkcharters.org/resource-center/school-leaders/compliance/fiscal-guidelines-forms-templates/
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832582/28672331/Young_Womens_College_Prep_Charter_KLsoQUR.xlsx
https://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832583/28098849/Final_Disclosure_Forms.pdf
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ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of Trustees
Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who are members of the
Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members.

Entry 7 BOT Table

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.  

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information

for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees.

     

Authorizer:

Who is the authorizer of your charter school?

Board of Regents
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1. 2022-2023 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

s

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of

Complet

ed Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2022-

2023

1
Jennifer

Allen
Chair

Executiv

e, Audit,

Performa

nce

Evaluatio

n

Yes 2
12/31/20

19

6/30/202

3
12

2
Charles

Falcon

Treasure

r

Finanace

, Audit,

Executiv

e

Yes 1 9/1/2021
8/31/202

4
12

3

Jennifer

Aronson-

Jovcevsk

i

Secretar

y

Executiv

e
Yes 1

11/01/20

19

6/30/202

3
9

4
Julia

Green

Trustee/

Member

Executiv

e,

Governa

nce,

Performa

nce

Evaluatio

n

Yes 1 9/1/2021
8/31/202

4
8

5

Erin

Duffy-

Kruss

Trustee/

Member

Scholars

hip
Yes 1 9/1/2021

8/31/202

4
7

6

LaQuan

na

Sparkma

n

Trustee/

Member

Educatio

n,

Culture,

Climate,

Engage

ment

Yes 1
12/31/20

21

8/15/202

2
5 or less
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7

Belimar

Velazque

z

Trustee/

Member

Recruitm

ent,

Engage

ment

and

Retentio

n

Yes 1 4/1/2022
3/31/202

5
12

8

Jennifer

Weinstei

n

Trustee/

Member

Develop

ment,

YWCP

Foundati

on

Yes 2 1/1/2020
1/31/202

3
5 or less

9
Melissa

Geska

Trustee/

Member

Governa

nce
Yes 1

11/1/202

0

8/15/202

2
5 or less

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees?

Yes
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1b. Board Member Information

Trustee

Name

Trustee

Email

Address

Position

on the

Board

Committe

e

Affiliation

s

Voting

Member

Per By-

Laws

(Y/N)

Number

of Terms

Served

Start

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

End

Date of

Current

Term

(MM/DD/

YYYY)

Board

Meetings

Attended

During

2022-

2023

10
Maria

Cruz

Trustee/

Member

None

selected

yet

Yes 1 5/1/2023
4/30/202

6
5 or less

11
Sarah

Tufano

Trustee/

Member

None

selected

yet

Yes 1 5/1/2023
4/30/202

6
5 or less

12

13

14

15

1c. Are there more than 15 members of the Board of Trustees?

No
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2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.  

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to all

trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2023 8

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2022-2023 2

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 2022-

2023
3

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws,

Resolution or Minutes
11

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2022-2023

12

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2023-2024

12

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2023:

8

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year:

2
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Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year:

3

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution, or minutes:

11

Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30, 2023:

0

Total number of Non-Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year:

0

Total number of Non-Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year:

0

Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution or

minutes:

0

Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during 2022-2023

7

Thank you.
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Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2022-June 2023), which should match
the number of meetings held during the 2022-2023 school year, as indicated in the above table. The minutes
provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and may be uploaded individually or
as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted by August 1, 2023.

Board Minutes 22-23

Filename: Board_Minutes_22-23.pdf Size: 4.2 MB

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2022-2023 toward meeting targets to attract and
retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners (ELLs), and students who are
economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress toward meeting
its enrollment and retention targets in 2023-2024. 

*SUNY-authorized charter schools

The education corporation must include a plan for the charter to meet or exceed enrollment and retention targets
established by the SUNY Trustees for students with disabilities, ELLs, and students who are eligible to participate in
the FRPL program. See the enrollment and retention target calculator to find specific targets.

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special Populations
 

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832585/28098837/Board_Minutes_22-23.pdf
https://www.newyorkcharters.org/resource-center/school-leaders/accountability/enrollment-retention-targets/
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Good Faith Efforts to Meet Recruitment Targets (Attract)

Describe Recruitment Efforts in

2022-2023

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2023-

2024

Economically Disadvantaged

YWCP has continued to adapt our

recruitment processes to meet the

needs of our community. We have

increased our presence in the

community, going to them and not

simply waiting for them to come to

us. Access to events was increased

by allowing virtual and in person

options to families. YWCP continues

to highlight all the positive things

happening here each day.

An aggressive approach to

recruitment began in the summer of

2023 with radio advertisements,

attendance at the Rochester Public

Market and increased presence in

the neighborhoods. As a school we

will continue to increase our

presence by creating partnerships

with local business and attending

more local festivals. As a school we

will hold an open house recruitment

food truck rodeo in early September

and again in the Spring. We will

increase our presence on social

media platforms and revamp our

school website to highlight all the

great things happening at YWCP.

English Language Learners

YWCP has continued to adapt our

recruitment processes to meet the

needs of our community. We have

increased our presence in the

community, going to them and not

simply waiting for them to come to

us. Access to events was increased

by allowing virtual and in person

options to families. YWCP continues

to highlight all the positive things

happening here each day.

We will target specific communities

and organizations that cater to

refugee resettlement as well as

increase the quantity of languages

our recruitment material is written in.

Students with Disabilities YWCP has continued to adapt our

recruitment processes to meet the

needs of our community. We have

increased our presence in the

community, going to them and not

simply waiting for them to come to

us. Access to events was increased

by allowing virtual and in person

options to families. YWCP continues

We will do targeted recruitment with

the support of local agencies that

work with families of students with

disabilities
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to highlight all the positive things

happening here each day.
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Good Faith Efforts To Meet Enrollment Retention Targets

Describe Retention Efforts in 2022-

2023

Describe Retention Plans in 2023-

2024

Economically Disadvantaged

As a school YWCP focuses on

individualized attention to students.

BASE (behavior, academic, social

and emotional) data teams were

reinstituted to help track student

progress and create interventions

for student success. YWCP worked

daily to support the whole student

giving access to field trips,

counseling, athletics, and college

planning.

A school wide focus on professional

development for teachers around

engagement strategies and creating

a welcoming environment will lead

directly to high achieving students

with a sense of belonging. All faculty

will be training in mental health first

aid in order to build their capacity to

support students needs. A math

interventionist and literacy specialist

were positions added to help bridge

academic gaps that our students

are still experiencing. As a school,

regular data meetings will be held to

review individual students to ensure

adequate progress is being made.

Students will have access to

"scholar hour" and newly formed

clubs each week to find a new level

of success and sense of belonging.

English Language Learners As a school YWCP focuses on

individualized attention to students.

BASE (behavior, academic, social

and emotional) data teams were

reinstituted to help track student

progress and create interventions

for student success. YWCP worked

daily to support the whole student

giving access to field trips,

counseling, athletics, and college

planning. Access to an ESL teacher

has allowed students to have an

increased level of support.

A school wide focus on professional

development for teachers around

engagement strategies and creating

a welcoming environment will lead

directly to high achieving students

with a sense of belonging. All faculty

will be training in mental health first

aid in order to build their capacity to

support students needs. A math

interventionist and literacy specialist

were positions added to help bridge

academic gaps that our students

are still experiencing. As a school,

regular data meetings will be held to

review individual students to ensure

adequate progress is being made.

Students will have access to

"scholar hour" and newly formed
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clubs each week to find a new level

of success and sense of belonging.

Students with Disabilities

As a school YWCP focuses on

individualized attention to students.

BASE (behavior, academic, social

and emotional) data teams were

reinstituted to help track student

progress and create interventions

for student success. YWCP worked

daily to support the whole student

giving access to field trips,

counseling, athletics, and college

planning. Access to a Sped teacher

has allowed students to have an

increased level of support.

A school wide focus on professional

development for teachers around

engagement strategies and creating

a welcoming environment will lead

directly to high achieving students

with a sense of belonging. All faculty

will be training in mental health first

aid in order to build their capacity to

support students needs. A math

interventionist and literacy specialist

were positions added to help bridge

academic gaps that our students

are still experiencing. As a school,

regular data meetings will be held to

review individual students to ensure

adequate progress is being made.

Students will have access to

"scholar hour" and newly formed

clubs each week to find a new level

of success and sense of belonging.

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition"
Revised to Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation
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A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office of

School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes paraprofessionals and

other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of location, or related/contracted service

providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file

of each employee. For the safety of all students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the

employment of individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school

must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH system.

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through the NYSED

TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been removed from the TEACH

system, and is not employed by the school.

1. Emergency Conditional Clearances

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for prospective

employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the school’s emergency

conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school receives notification from NYSED

regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all prospective employees through the NYSED

TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency

conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours after approval by the board.

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency conditional

clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal.

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information can be

found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019.

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, security

personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school building. This

includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or assigned by the district of

location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED

website at: http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information regarding who

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2.

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances

Emergency Conditional Clearances

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for prospective

employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the school’s emergency

conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school receives notification from NYSED

regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all prospective employees through the NYSED

TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency

conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours after approval by the board.

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency conditional

clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal.

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information can be

found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019.

Attestation

Responses Selected:

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements.

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New York State
Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications.  Uncertified teachers are those not certified pursuant to
the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column.  For example, a school with 20 full-
time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers
School Name:      

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers
Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New York State

Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications.  Uncertified teachers are those not certified

pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column.  For example, a school with 20

full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do not include

paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least three

years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom

teaching experience (as of June 30, 2023)

3

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or

tenure track college faculty (as of June 30, 2023)
0

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of

Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 2023)
0

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional

business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military

experience (as June 30, 2023)

0

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 3.0
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER SCIENCE,

TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION.

FTE Count

i. Mathematics 0

ii. Science 1

iii. Computer Science 0

iv. Technology 0

v. Career and Technical Education 0

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 1.0

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

FTE Count

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least three

years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom

teaching experience (as of June 30, 2023)

0

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or

tenure track college faculty (as of June 30, 2023)
0

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of

Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 2023)
0

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional

business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military

experience (as June 30, 2023)

3

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 3.0
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TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS (Sum of Categories A, B AND C)

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for that

category)

FTE Count

Total 7

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for that

category)

FTE Count

Total Category D 3

CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS

FTE Count

Total Category E 18

CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

FTE Count

Total Category F 28

Thank you.

Entry 12 Organization Chart
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions
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Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2022-2023 Organization Chart. The organization chart should be a graphic representation (A list will not
be accepted.) and should include position titles and reporting (hierarchical) relationships.  Employee names should
not appear on the chart.

YWCP Organizational Chart 22-23

Filename: YWCP_Organizational_Chart_22-23.pdf Size: 166.3 kB

Entry 13 School Calendar
Completed - Jul 31 2023

Instructions for submitting School Calendar

Required of ALL Charter Schools

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit
with the August 1, 2023 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar into the portal and may do
so at any time but no later than September 15, 2023. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools “… unless
the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate the
start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or instructional days for each
month (also used to align to schools with extended days/years referenced in their mission statements/key design
elements), See an example of a calendar showing the requested information.  Schools must use a calendar format
and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional days.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Academic Calendar 2023-2024 Official

Filename: Academic_Calendar_2023-2024_Official.pdf Size: 477.2 kB

Entry 14 Staff Roster
Completed - Jul 31 2023

INSTRUCTIONS

Required of Regents and NYCDOE-authorized Charter Schools ONLY

Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY and ALL
instructional and non-instructional employees (all faculty and staff employed by the school during the 2022-2023
school year).

Use of the 2022-2023 Annual Report Faculty/Staff Roster Template is required. Each of the data elements, with
the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options, when provided, is also required.
 Reminders: Please use the Notes section provided to add any additional information as deemed necessary. Failure
to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the Faculty/Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully
corrected roster.

Here is the complete list of data elements in the roster template and an explanation of what information is required to
correctly complete this task.

Roster Data Elements Explanations
Authorizer
NOTE: MUST BE DONE FIRST

Select your school’s authorizer from the drop-down list
first, before completing the roster.

School Name and Institution ID Select your school’s name from the drop-down list.
Faculty/Staff First Name Enter the first name of the Faculty/Staff person.
Faculty/Staff Last Name Enter the last name of the Faculty/Staff person.

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832589/27987907/YWCP_Organizational_Chart_22-23.pdf
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/attendance/htm_docs/final_adopted_regulations.htm
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832590/27987910/Academic_Calendar_2023-2024_Official.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports
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TEACH ID Enter the 7 digit TEACH ID for the Faculty/Staff person.

Role in School Select the best choice of role of the Faculty/Staff person
from the drop-down list.

CPR/AED Certification Status Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Hire Date Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person was hired.

Start Date Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person actually
began employment in this school.

Total Years’ Experience in this Role Enter Total Years of Experience that the Faculty/Staff
person has in their current role.

Total Years at this School Enter the Total Years that the Faculty/Staff person has
been employed in this school.

Out-of-Certification Justification Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Subject Taught Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list.
Notes Optional

Faculty and Staff Roster 22-23

Filename: Faculty_and_Staff_Roster_22-23.xlsx Size: 22.2 kB

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR)
Incomplete

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/226832591/27986965/Faculty_and_Staff_Roster_22-23.xlsx
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
October 26, 2023 
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Young Women’s 
College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the School) (a New York not-for-profit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2023, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the School adopted 
Accounting Standards Codification 842, Leases, as of July 1, 2022. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate 
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern within 
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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(Continued) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Continued) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited the School’s 2022 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 18, 2022.  
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 
 
 

 
 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
26, 2023 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
June 30, 2023
(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash 1,445,337$       678,223$          
Accounts receivable 118,664            66,017
Grants receivable 488,606            998,881
Prepaid expenses and other assets 144,569            138,012            

Total current assets 2,197,176         1,881,133         

INVESTMENTS 483,152            475,119            

DESIGNATED CASH 100,000            100,000            

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 262,574            390,675            

RIGHT OF USE ASSET - FINANCE LEASES 2,264,819 -                        

RIGHT OF USE ASSET - OPERATING LEASES 2,240                -                        

5,309,961$       2,846,927$       

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 52,416$            56,083$            
Due to school districts 12,545              4,302                
Accrued expenses 448,134            531,913            

Deferred revenue 6,416                5,311                
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 555                   -                        
Current portion of finance lease liabilities 530,096            -                        

Total current liabilities 1,050,162         597,609            

OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current portion 1,685                -                        

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current portion 1,800,939         -                        

Total liabilities 2,852,786         597,609            

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 2,457,175         2,249,318         

5,309,961$       2,846,927$       

YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022

REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Public school districts 5,291,755$       5,453,747$        
Federal and state grants 1,049,154         1,338,168          
Other 19,323              7,765                 

Total revenue and support 6,360,232         6,799,680          

EXPENSES:
Program -

Regular education 5,535,881         6,055,741          
Special education 143,135            276,531             

Total program expenses 5,679,016         6,332,272          

Management and general 481,392            496,912             

Total expenses 6,160,408         6,829,184          

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS 199,824            (29,504)              

INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS), NET 8,033                (34,154)              

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 207,857            (63,658)              

NET ASSETS - beginning of year 2,249,318         2,312,976          

NET ASSETS - end of year 2,457,175$       2,249,318$        

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

Regular Special Management
Education Education Other Total and General Fundraising Total 2023 2022

Personnel services costs:
Administrative staff personnel 640,578$        -$                    -$                    640,578$        263,541$        -$                    263,541$        904,119$        862,897$        
Instructional personnel 1,772,869       108,497          -                      1,881,366       -                      -                      -                      1,881,366       2,420,625       
Non-instructional personnel 367,127          -                      -                      367,127          -                      -                      -                      367,127          329,271          

Total personnel services costs 2,780,574       108,497          -                      2,889,071       263,541          -                      263,541          3,152,612       3,612,793       

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 599,449          23,380            -                      622,829          56,819            -                      56,819            679,648          808,269          
Retirement 231,647          9,759              -                      241,406          12,735            -                      12,735            254,141          281,775          
Accounting/audit services -                      -                      -                      -                      18,820 -                      18,820            18,820            12,700            
Other purchased/professional/consulting services 344,549 -                      -                      344,549          20,204            -                      20,204            364,753          278,902          
Building and land rent/lease -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      520,052          
Repairs and maintenance 42                   -                      -                      42                   -                      -                      -                      42                   849                 
Insurance 37,184            1,499              -                      38,683            19,375            -                      19,375            58,058            58,338            
Utilities 103,219          -                      -                      103,219          1,920              -                      1,920              105,139          123,812          
Supplies/materials 51,109            -                      -                      51,109            -                      -                      -                      51,109            69,827            
Equipment/furnishings 3,113              -                      -                      3,113              -                      -                      -                      3,113              2,011              
Staff development 32,485 -                      -                      32,485            -                      -                      -                      32,485            17,599            
Marketing/recruitment 51,740            -                      -                      51,740            -                      -                      -                      51,740            17,910            
Technology 16,653            -                      -                      16,653            -                      -                      -                      16,653            44,959            
Food service 266,640          -                      -                      266,640          -                      -                      -                      266,640          253,111          
Student services 217,999          -                      -                      217,999          -                      -                      -                      217,999          485,593          
Office expense 41,419            -                      -                      41,419            -                      -                      -                      41,419            68,515            
Depreciation and amortization 715,515          -                      -                      715,515          11,204 -                      11,204            726,719          132,213          
Other 42,544            -                      -                      42,544            76,774            -                      76,774            119,318          39,956            

5,535,881$     143,135$        -$                    5,679,016$     481,392$        -$                    481,392$        6,160,408$     6,829,184$     

Program Services Supporting Services Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Accounts receivable 5,240,213$       5,441,551$       
Grant revenue 1,559,429         757,598            
Miscellaneous sources 19,323              7,325                
Payments to vendors for goods and services rendered (2,352,485)       (2,987,667)       
Payments to charter school personnel for services rendered (3,166,964)       (3,747,247)       

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,299,516         (528,440)           

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (38,441)             (328,718)           

Net cash flow from investing activities (38,441)             (328,718)           

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (493,961)           -                        

Net cash flow from financing activities (493,961)           -                        

CHANGE IN CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH 767,114            (857,158)           

CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH - beginning of year 778,223            1,635,381         

CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH - end of year 1,545,337$       778,223$          

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO
  NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets 207,857$          (63,658)$           
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash flow from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 726,719 132,213
Loss (gain) on investments, net (8,033)               34,154              
Changes in:

Accounts receivable (52,647)             (11,756)             
Due to school districts 8,243                (15,529)             
Grants receivable 510,275            (581,010)           
Prepaid expenses and other assets (6,557)               5,771                
Accounts payable (3,667)               31,939              
Accrued expenses (83,779)             (60,124)             
Deferred revenue 1,105                (440)                  

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,299,516$       (528,440)$        

YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
4
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YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER  
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023      
 
 
 
1. THE ORGANIZATION 

 
Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the School) is an independent 
public school established under the provisions of the New York State Charter School Act of 
1998, codified as Article 56 of the Education Law.  The School is affiliated with the Student 
Leadership Network (SLN), which supports dozens of single-gender Young Women’s 
Leadership Network (YWLN) schools nationwide serving approximately 10,000 students.  The 
School benefits from the structured and targeted support that SLN provides for its network 
schools and affiliates that can be measured in college acceptance and graduation. 
 
The School’s mission is to provide students in Rochester, New York with a safe, supportive, 
and intellectually engaging educational environment.  The central philosophy of the School is 
that strong student-teacher relationships are essential to student motivation and achievement.  
The School is designed to strengthen these bonds and assist students in overcoming the 
demographic destiny of poverty and exceed state achievement standards. 

 
The School began operations in September 2011 and provides educational instruction to 
students in seventh grade through twelfth grade.  In May 2022, the School received a renewal 
of its charter through June 30, 2027. 
 
Young Women’s College Prep Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is an unrelated not-for-profit 
corporation formed to provide a bridge between the Rochester community and the School.  In 
addition to providing the School with financial support for identified and targeted initiatives, the 
Foundation provides selective student programming and mentoring to enhance the students’ 
experiences at the School.   
 
 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

 
Change in Accounting Principles 
ASC 842 - Leases  
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases, to increase transparency and comparability among 
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on 
the balance sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of 
ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. 
Under the standard, disclosures are required to meet the objective of enabling users of 
financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from 
leases. 

 
The School adopted the standard effective July 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective 
approach and comparative financial information has not been restated. Lease disclosures for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 are made under prior lease guidance in FASB ASC 840. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Change in Accounting Principles (Continued) 
ASC 842 - Leases (Continued) 
The School elected the available practical expedients to account for the existing capital leases 
and operating leases as finance leases and operating leases, respectively, under the new 
guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contracts contain leases under the new 
standard, (b) whether classification of capital leases or operating leases would be different in 
accordance with the new guidance, or (c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs before 
transition adjustments would have met the definition of initial direct costs in the new guidance 
at lease commencement. 

 
As a result of the adoption of the new lease accounting guidance, the School recognized on 
July 1, 2022 an operating lease liability and an operating right-of-use asset of $2,330. The 
School also recognized on July 1, 2022 a finance lease liability and a finance right-of-use 
asset of $2,788,832. The standard did not have an impact on the statements of activities and 
change in net assets or cash flows. 
 
Financial Reporting 
Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, all of the School’s net assets were without donor 
restrictions. 

 
Cash and Designated Cash 

 The School’s cash and designated cash are maintained in bank demand deposit accounts.  
The balances in these accounts may, at times, exceed federally insured limits.  The School 
has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it is not exposed to any 
significant credit risk with respect to cash. 

 
In accordance with New York State Department of Education (NYSED) regulations, the School 
is required to maintain funds to pay for expenses associated with the potential termination of 
the School or non-renewal of the School’s charter.  The School had designated funds totaling 
$100,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022 to satisfy this requirement. 

 
 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from contracts with students is recognized in the fiscal year in which the academic 
programs are delivered. The School records per pupil tuition revenue on a per student basis at 
the student’s resident district’s allocated rate which is established and published by New York 
State (the State). The School recognizes tuition revenue as public school districts revenue, on 
the statement of activities and change in net assets, in the period in which it satisfies its 
performance obligations by transferring services to its students.  
 
The School’s performance obligation relative to per pupil tuition is to provide instruction for its 
students over the academic year. These obligations are satisfied over the academic year as 
these services are provided by the School and received by the student. 
 
Payments for per pupil tuition are recognized at the amounts to which the School expects to be 
entitled, and this transaction price is allocated to the service. Each academic year, the 
performance obligation is satisfied as the benefit of the services are consumed. 
 
The transaction price is the student’s resident district’s per pupil allocated rate, as determined 
by the State. The rate is prorated based on the student’s full time equivalent during the 
academic year. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 Revenue Recognition (Continued) 

Per pupil tuition is charged to the student’s resident district on a bimonthly basis with six 
payments made during the academic year. The School expects to collect all payments due 
from the students’ resident districts and, therefore, the School has not established an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 

 Grant Revenue and Receivable 
 Grant revenue is recognized as the related costs are incurred, or when evidence of a non-

conditional grant has been received. Grants subject to conditions are not recorded as income 
until those conditions have been met. Amounts received in advance of incurring the related 
costs are reported as deferred revenue. 

 
The School records an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical collection 
experience and a review of specific amounts outstanding.  Accounts are written off against the 
allowance when uncollectibility becomes known. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, it was 
determined that an allowance for uncollectible amounts was not necessary.  

 
 Investments 

Investments are recorded at fair value, based on quoted market prices.  The School invests in 
various types of investment securities.  Investment securities are exposed to various risks, 
such as interest rate, market, economic conditions, world affairs, and credit risk.  Due to the 
level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
Investment income (loss) consists of interest and dividends, net realized and unrealized gains 
or losses, and investment management fees.  Interest income is recognized on an accrual 
basis, dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. 

 
Fair Value  
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The School uses 
various valuation techniques in determining fair value.  GAAP establishes a hierarchy for 
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when available. 
The hierarchy consists of three levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows: 
 
• Level 1 - Valuations are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the School has the ability to access.  Valuation adjustments are not applied 
to Level 1 instruments.  Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and 
regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a 
significant degree of judgment. 

 
• Level 2 - Valuations are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which 

all significant inputs are observable, directly or indirectly. 
 

• Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the 
overall fair value measurement. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Fair Value (Continued) 
 The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of factors.  To 

the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable 
in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.  Accordingly, the degree 
of judgment exercised by the School in determining fair value is greatest for instruments 
categorized in Level 3.  In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy.  In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the level in 
the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is 
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety.  There were no changes in valuation techniques during 2023 or 2022. 

  
Property and Equipment  
Property and equipment is stated at cost or fair value at the date of donation.  It is the School’s 
policy to capitalize all additions greater than $1,000 with a useful life in excess of three years.  
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets, which range from three to ten years. 
 
Leases 
The School determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets 
represent the School’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities 
represent an obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Lease ROU assets 
and liabilities are recognized at lease commencement date based on the present value of 
lease payments over the lease term. The lease may include renewal and termination options, 
which are included in the lease term when the School is reasonably certain to exercise these 
options. 
 
For all underlying classes of assets, the School has elected to not recognize ROU assets and 
lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease 
commencement and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the School 
is reasonably certain to exercise. The School recognizes fixed short-term lease cost on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term and variable lease cost in the period in which the 
obligation is incurred. 
 
In evaluating contracts to determine if they qualify as a lease, the School considers factors 
such as if the School obtained substantially all of the rights to the underlying asset through 
exclusivity, if it can direct the use of the asset by making decisions about how and for what 
purpose the asset will be used and if the lessor has substantive substitution rights. This 
evaluation may require significant judgment. 
 
The School elected for all classes of underlying assets to not separate the lease and non-
lease components of a contract and to account for as a single lease component. 
 
The School elected for all classes of underlying assets to use the risk-free rate as the discount 
rate if the implicit rate in the lease contract is not readily determinable. 
 
Variable lease costs paid to or on behalf of the lessor, consisting primarily of utilities, custodial 
services, and property maintenance are excluded from the measurement of the ROU asset 
and lease liability and are expensed in the period incurred. 

 
Program Services   

 Regular education expenses include costs incurred in connection with the educational 
activities of the School. Special education expenses represent the cost of educating students 
with individualized education programs or those receiving special education services in the 
classroom.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Expense Allocations 
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or 
more program or supporting functions. Those expenses include personnel service costs, fringe 
benefits and payroll taxes, retirement, other purchased/professional/consulting, building and 
land rent/lease, insurance, utilities and other expenses. Personnel service costs and retirement 
are directly charged based on position. Fringe benefits and payroll taxes are allocated based 
on the percentage of personnel services costs that are charged to each function. Other 
purchased/professional/consulting, building and land rent/lease, insurance, utilities and other 
expenses are directly charged whenever possible and appropriate and otherwise are allocated 
based on square footage. 
 

 Donated Services 
 Volunteers have donated significant amounts of time in support of the School’s activities. 

However, the value of these services is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements, 
as they do not meet the criteria for recognition as set forth under GAAP.  

 
Income Taxes 
The School is exempt from income taxes as a corporation qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  The School has also been classified by the Internal Revenue 
Service as an entity that is not a private foundation. 
 
Comparative Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in 
total, but not by functional expense classification.  Such information does not include sufficient 
detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with GAAP. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, from which the summarized information was derived. 
 
Estimates 

 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 
and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 

3.  CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH 
 

Cash and designated cash, as reported on the statement of cash flows, consisted of the 
following at June 30: 

 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash  $ 1,445,337 $ 678,223 
Designated cash  100,000  100,000 
   
 $ 1,545,337 $ 778,223 
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4. LIQUIDITY 
 
At June 30, the School had financial assets available to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures one year of the statement of financial position as follows: 
 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash $ 1,445,337 $ 678,223 
Accounts receivable  118,664  66,017 
Grants receivable  488,606  998,881 
Investments  483,152  475,119 
   
 $ 2,535,759 $ 2,218,240 
 
The School is substantially supported by student enrollment and federal and state grants that 
are without contractual or donor restrictions.  As part of the School’s liquidity management, it 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other 
obligations come due.  
 
The School maintains sufficient cash that is readily available for general expenditures.  
Additionally, the School’s ability to meet its cash needs is further dependent, in part, on timely 
collection of its accounts receivable and grants receivable.  The School’s accounts receivable 
and grants receivable are due primarily from government funders, such as New York State and 
various New York State central school districts. The School employs procedures specifically 
designed to collect from these payers as quickly as possible.   

 
 
5. CONCENTRATIONS 
 
 The School’s primary source of funding is obtained from the NYSED and is reported as public 

school district revenue in the accompanying statements of activities and change in net assets.  
This funding is received on a per pupil basis and was approximately 83% and 80% of the 
School’s total revenue and support during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  

 
 
6.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  
 
 Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 
  

 2023 2022 
   
Equipment $ 792,746 $ 763,120 
Property and leasehold improvements  289,554  280,739 
   
  1,082,300  1,043,859 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation   (819,726)  (653,184) 
   
 $ 262,574 $ 390,675 

 
 Depreciation expense was $166,542 and $132,213 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 

2022, respectively.  
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7. LEASES  
 
The School leases the School building and a copier under the terms of finance lease 
agreements, which expire at various dates through 2028. The School building agreement 
contains three options to exercise additional five-year extensions that coincide with the 
School’s charter terms approved by the New York State Board of Regents. These extension 
options are not recognized as part of the ROU asset and lease liability. The School also leases 
a postage meter under the terms of an operating lease agreement which expires in 2027. 
 
The components of total lease cost for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 
Finance lease cost:  
   Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 560,177 
   Interest on lease liabilities  72,930 
Operating lease cost  104 
Variable lease cost  95,384 
   

$ 728,595 
 

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as 
follows: 

 
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:  
   Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 67,430 
   Financing cash flows from finance leases $ 499,461 
   Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 52 
  
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:  
   Finance leases $ 2,824,996 
   Operating leases $ 2,330 

 
Other information related to leases as of June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

 
Weighted-average remaining lease term:  
   Finance leases 4.01 years 
   Operating leases 3.83 years 
Weighted-average discount rate:  
   Finance leases 2.89% 
   Operating leases 3.56% 
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7. LEASES (Continued) 
 
The School’s maturities of lease liabilities are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

 
 Finance 

Leases 
Operating 

Leases 
   
2025 $ 589,093 $ 624 
2026  606,528  624 
2027  624,487  624 
2028  642,983  520 
2029  5,275  - 
   

  2,468,366  2,392 
Less: Present value discount  (137,331)  (152) 
   
Total present value of lease liabilities  2,331,035  2,240 
Less: current portion  (530,096)  (555) 
   
 $ 1,800,939 $ 1,685 
 
Rental expense was approximately $520,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Future minimum lease payments disclosed in the notes to the 2022 financial statements under 
prior lease guidance for the years succeeding 2022, were reported as follows on June 30: 

 
2023 $ 564,253 
2024  586,823 
2025  610,296 
2026  634,708 
2027  660,096 
  
 $ 3,056,176 

 
 
8. INVESTMENTS 
 

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs and consisted 
of the following at June 30: 

 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash and equivalents $ 11,169 $ 11,865 
Mutual funds  256,216  230,353 
Exchange traded funds  215,767  232,901 
   
 $ 483,152 $ 475,119 

 
Cash and equivalents, mutual funds, and exchanged traded funds are reported at fair value 
based on quoted market prices. 
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9. COVID-19 
 

 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER) was established and 
funded by a number of federal stimulus legislations. ESSER grants were awarded to help 
schools safely reopen and to sustain their safe operations as the schools addressed the 
COVID-19 impact on their students. 

 
During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School received ESSER funds totaling 
approximately $444,516 and $883,872, respectively, which has been recorded as a 
component of federal and state grants on the statements of activities and change in net assets. 

 
 
10. RETIREMENT PLANS 
  
 403(b) Retirement Plan 

The School sponsors a tax-sheltered annuity 403(b) retirement plan (the Plan) for all salaried 
employees.  These employees are eligible to participate in the Plan upon hiring and are vested 
in the School’s contributions upon continuation of service after the completion of one year.  
The School did not make any contributions to the Plan during the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022.  

 
New York State Teachers’ Retirement System  
The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS). This is a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system.  TRS offers a wide range of plans and 
benefits which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting of retirement 
benefits, death, and disability. TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the Retirement and Social 
Security Law of the State of New York.  TRS issues a publicly available financial report that 
contains financial statements and requirement supplementary information for the System. 
 
TRS requires employee contributions of 3% of their annual salary for the first 10 years of 
service for those employees who joined the plan between July 1976 and December 2009.  
Participants hired between January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 are required to contribution 
3.5% of their annual salary, and participants hired after April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 
between 3% and 6% of the annual salary, depending on their reportable salary.  Participants 
hired after January 1, 2010 are required to contribute throughout the active membership in 
TRS.   No employee contribution is required for those hired prior to July 1976.  Pursuant to 
Article 11 of the Education Law, an actuarially determined contribution rate is established 
annually by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board.  The rate for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, was 10.29% and 9.80% of the annual covered payroll. 
The School’s required contribution was $254,141 and $281,775 for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022, respectively.  
 

 
11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  
 Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 26, 2023, which is the date the 

financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
October 26, 2023 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of Young Women’s College Prep 
Charter School of Rochester (the School) (a New York not-for-profit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2023, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 26, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
organization’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control 
and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
October 26, 2023  
 
To the Board of Directors of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester’s 
(the School) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2023.  The School’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 
  
In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to 
above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, 
rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the School’s 
federal programs. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the School’s compliance with the 
requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued) 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
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YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023       

 
 Assistance Contract/ Expenditures 

 Listing Grant of Federal 
  Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Number Awards 
    
U.S. Department of Agriculture:    
    
 Passed through from the New York State 
   Department of Health - 

   

  National School Lunch Program  10.555 N/A $ 255,983 
    
U.S. Department of Education:    
    
 Passed through New York State Department of 
   Education: 

   

    
 Education Stabilization Fund:    
 COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School 
     Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund 

 
84.425D 

 
5891-21-4910 

 
 25,183 

    
 COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School 
    Emergency Relief (ARP ESSER) Fund 

 
84.425U 

 
5880-21-4910 

 
 419,333 

    
    Total Education Stabilization Fund    444,516 

    
 Expanding Opportunity Through Quality Charter 

School Programs (CSP) 
 

84.282 
 

T014424 
 
 49,950 

    
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies (LEA) 84.010A 0021-22-4910  248,207  

    
 Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant Title II 84.367A 0147-22-4910  28,868 
    
 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant  
    Title IV 

 
84.424A 

 
0204-22-4910 

 
 16,317 

    
 Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA  
    Funding) 

 
84.027 

 
N/A 

 
 66,527 

    
    Total U.S. Department of Education    854,385 
    
   $ 1,110,368 
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YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 
 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023       
 
 
 
1. GENERAL 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) summarizes the 
federal award activity of Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the 
School) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the School’s operations, it is not intended to, and does not, 
present the financial position, change in net assets, or cash flows of the School.  

 
 
2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
 

3. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 

The School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 

YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the
financial statements of Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the
School) are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

2. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies related to the audit of the School’s
financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the School, which
would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were
disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program for the
School expresses an unmodified opinion.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

7. The programs tested as major programs were:

U.S. Department of Education:

• ALN 84.425D  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ESSER) Fund 

• ALN 84.425U  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ARP ESSER) Fund 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

9. The School was determined to not be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM

None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
October 26, 2023 
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Young Women’s 
College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the School) (a New York not-for-profit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2023, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the School adopted 
Accounting Standards Codification 842, Leases, as of July 1, 2022. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate 
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern within 
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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(Continued) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Continued) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited the School’s 2022 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 18, 2022.  
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 
 
 

 
 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
26, 2023 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
June 30, 2023
(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash 1,445,337$       678,223$          
Accounts receivable 118,664            66,017
Grants receivable 488,606            998,881
Prepaid expenses and other assets 144,569            138,012            

Total current assets 2,197,176         1,881,133         

INVESTMENTS 483,152            475,119            

DESIGNATED CASH 100,000            100,000            

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 262,574            390,675            

RIGHT OF USE ASSET - FINANCE LEASES 2,264,819 -                        

RIGHT OF USE ASSET - OPERATING LEASES 2,240                -                        

5,309,961$       2,846,927$       

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 52,416$            56,083$            
Due to school districts 12,545              4,302                
Accrued expenses 448,134            531,913            

Deferred revenue 6,416                5,311                
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 555                   -                        
Current portion of finance lease liabilities 530,096            -                        

Total current liabilities 1,050,162         597,609            

OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current portion 1,685                -                        

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current portion 1,800,939         -                        

Total liabilities 2,852,786         597,609            

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 2,457,175         2,249,318         

5,309,961$       2,846,927$       

YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022

REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Public school districts 5,291,755$       5,453,747$        
Federal and state grants 1,049,154         1,338,168          
Other 19,323              7,765                 

Total revenue and support 6,360,232         6,799,680          

EXPENSES:
Program -

Regular education 5,535,881         6,055,741          
Special education 143,135            276,531             

Total program expenses 5,679,016         6,332,272          

Management and general 481,392            496,912             

Total expenses 6,160,408         6,829,184          

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS 199,824            (29,504)              

INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS), NET 8,033                (34,154)              

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 207,857            (63,658)              

NET ASSETS - beginning of year 2,249,318         2,312,976          

NET ASSETS - end of year 2,457,175$       2,249,318$        

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
2



YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

Regular Special Management
Education Education Other Total and General Fundraising Total 2023 2022

Personnel services costs:
Administrative staff personnel 640,578$        -$                    -$                    640,578$        263,541$        -$                    263,541$        904,119$        862,897$        
Instructional personnel 1,772,869       108,497          -                      1,881,366       -                      -                      -                      1,881,366       2,420,625       
Non-instructional personnel 367,127          -                      -                      367,127          -                      -                      -                      367,127          329,271          

Total personnel services costs 2,780,574       108,497          -                      2,889,071       263,541          -                      263,541          3,152,612       3,612,793       

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 599,449          23,380            -                      622,829          56,819            -                      56,819            679,648          808,269          
Retirement 231,647          9,759              -                      241,406          12,735            -                      12,735            254,141          281,775          
Accounting/audit services -                      -                      -                      -                      18,820 -                      18,820            18,820            12,700            
Other purchased/professional/consulting services 344,549 -                      -                      344,549          20,204            -                      20,204            364,753          278,902          
Building and land rent/lease -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      520,052          
Repairs and maintenance 42                   -                      -                      42                   -                      -                      -                      42                   849                 
Insurance 37,184            1,499              -                      38,683            19,375            -                      19,375            58,058            58,338            
Utilities 103,219          -                      -                      103,219          1,920              -                      1,920              105,139          123,812          
Supplies/materials 51,109            -                      -                      51,109            -                      -                      -                      51,109            69,827            
Equipment/furnishings 3,113              -                      -                      3,113              -                      -                      -                      3,113              2,011              
Staff development 32,485 -                      -                      32,485            -                      -                      -                      32,485            17,599            
Marketing/recruitment 51,740            -                      -                      51,740            -                      -                      -                      51,740            17,910            
Technology 16,653            -                      -                      16,653            -                      -                      -                      16,653            44,959            
Food service 266,640          -                      -                      266,640          -                      -                      -                      266,640          253,111          
Student services 217,999          -                      -                      217,999          -                      -                      -                      217,999          485,593          
Office expense 41,419            -                      -                      41,419            -                      -                      -                      41,419            68,515            
Depreciation and amortization 715,515          -                      -                      715,515          11,204 -                      11,204            726,719          132,213          
Other 42,544            -                      -                      42,544            76,774            -                      76,774            119,318          39,956            

5,535,881$     143,135$        -$                    5,679,016$     481,392$        -$                    481,392$        6,160,408$     6,829,184$     

Program Services Supporting Services Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Accounts receivable 5,240,213$       5,441,551$       
Grant revenue 1,559,429         757,598            
Miscellaneous sources 19,323              7,325                
Payments to vendors for goods and services rendered (2,352,485)       (2,987,667)       
Payments to charter school personnel for services rendered (3,166,964)       (3,747,247)       

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,299,516         (528,440)           

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (38,441)             (328,718)           

Net cash flow from investing activities (38,441)             (328,718)           

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of finance lease liabilities (493,961)           -                        

Net cash flow from financing activities (493,961)           -                        

CHANGE IN CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH 767,114            (857,158)           

CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH - beginning of year 778,223            1,635,381         

CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH - end of year 1,545,337$       778,223$          

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO
  NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets 207,857$          (63,658)$           
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
  net cash flow from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 726,719 132,213
Loss (gain) on investments, net (8,033)               34,154              
Changes in:

Accounts receivable (52,647)             (11,756)             
Due to school districts 8,243                (15,529)             
Grants receivable 510,275            (581,010)           
Prepaid expenses and other assets (6,557)               5,771                
Accounts payable (3,667)               31,939              
Accrued expenses (83,779)             (60,124)             
Deferred revenue 1,105                (440)                  

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,299,516$       (528,440)$        

YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
4
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YOUNG WOMEN'S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER  
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2023      
 
 
 
1. THE ORGANIZATION 

 
Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the School) is an independent 
public school established under the provisions of the New York State Charter School Act of 
1998, codified as Article 56 of the Education Law.  The School is affiliated with the Student 
Leadership Network (SLN), which supports dozens of single-gender Young Women’s 
Leadership Network (YWLN) schools nationwide serving approximately 10,000 students.  The 
School benefits from the structured and targeted support that SLN provides for its network 
schools and affiliates that can be measured in college acceptance and graduation. 
 
The School’s mission is to provide students in Rochester, New York with a safe, supportive, 
and intellectually engaging educational environment.  The central philosophy of the School is 
that strong student-teacher relationships are essential to student motivation and achievement.  
The School is designed to strengthen these bonds and assist students in overcoming the 
demographic destiny of poverty and exceed state achievement standards. 

 
The School began operations in September 2011 and provides educational instruction to 
students in seventh grade through twelfth grade.  In May 2022, the School received a renewal 
of its charter through June 30, 2027. 
 
Young Women’s College Prep Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is an unrelated not-for-profit 
corporation formed to provide a bridge between the Rochester community and the School.  In 
addition to providing the School with financial support for identified and targeted initiatives, the 
Foundation provides selective student programming and mentoring to enhance the students’ 
experiences at the School.   
 
 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

 
Change in Accounting Principles 
ASC 842 - Leases  
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases, to increase transparency and comparability among 
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on 
the balance sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of 
ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. 
Under the standard, disclosures are required to meet the objective of enabling users of 
financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from 
leases. 

 
The School adopted the standard effective July 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective 
approach and comparative financial information has not been restated. Lease disclosures for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 are made under prior lease guidance in FASB ASC 840. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Change in Accounting Principles (Continued) 
ASC 842 - Leases (Continued) 
The School elected the available practical expedients to account for the existing capital leases 
and operating leases as finance leases and operating leases, respectively, under the new 
guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contracts contain leases under the new 
standard, (b) whether classification of capital leases or operating leases would be different in 
accordance with the new guidance, or (c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs before 
transition adjustments would have met the definition of initial direct costs in the new guidance 
at lease commencement. 

 
As a result of the adoption of the new lease accounting guidance, the School recognized on 
July 1, 2022 an operating lease liability and an operating right-of-use asset of $2,330. The 
School also recognized on July 1, 2022 a finance lease liability and a finance right-of-use 
asset of $2,788,832. The standard did not have an impact on the statements of activities and 
change in net assets or cash flows. 
 
Financial Reporting 
Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, all of the School’s net assets were without donor 
restrictions. 

 
Cash and Designated Cash 

 The School’s cash and designated cash are maintained in bank demand deposit accounts.  
The balances in these accounts may, at times, exceed federally insured limits.  The School 
has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it is not exposed to any 
significant credit risk with respect to cash. 

 
In accordance with New York State Department of Education (NYSED) regulations, the School 
is required to maintain funds to pay for expenses associated with the potential termination of 
the School or non-renewal of the School’s charter.  The School had designated funds totaling 
$100,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022 to satisfy this requirement. 

 
 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from contracts with students is recognized in the fiscal year in which the academic 
programs are delivered. The School records per pupil tuition revenue on a per student basis at 
the student’s resident district’s allocated rate which is established and published by New York 
State (the State). The School recognizes tuition revenue as public school districts revenue, on 
the statement of activities and change in net assets, in the period in which it satisfies its 
performance obligations by transferring services to its students.  
 
The School’s performance obligation relative to per pupil tuition is to provide instruction for its 
students over the academic year. These obligations are satisfied over the academic year as 
these services are provided by the School and received by the student. 
 
Payments for per pupil tuition are recognized at the amounts to which the School expects to be 
entitled, and this transaction price is allocated to the service. Each academic year, the 
performance obligation is satisfied as the benefit of the services are consumed. 
 
The transaction price is the student’s resident district’s per pupil allocated rate, as determined 
by the State. The rate is prorated based on the student’s full time equivalent during the 
academic year. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 Revenue Recognition (Continued) 

Per pupil tuition is charged to the student’s resident district on a bimonthly basis with six 
payments made during the academic year. The School expects to collect all payments due 
from the students’ resident districts and, therefore, the School has not established an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 

 Grant Revenue and Receivable 
 Grant revenue is recognized as the related costs are incurred, or when evidence of a non-

conditional grant has been received. Grants subject to conditions are not recorded as income 
until those conditions have been met. Amounts received in advance of incurring the related 
costs are reported as deferred revenue. 

 
The School records an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical collection 
experience and a review of specific amounts outstanding.  Accounts are written off against the 
allowance when uncollectibility becomes known. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, it was 
determined that an allowance for uncollectible amounts was not necessary.  

 
 Investments 

Investments are recorded at fair value, based on quoted market prices.  The School invests in 
various types of investment securities.  Investment securities are exposed to various risks, 
such as interest rate, market, economic conditions, world affairs, and credit risk.  Due to the 
level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
Investment income (loss) consists of interest and dividends, net realized and unrealized gains 
or losses, and investment management fees.  Interest income is recognized on an accrual 
basis, dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. 

 
Fair Value  
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The School uses 
various valuation techniques in determining fair value.  GAAP establishes a hierarchy for 
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when available. 
The hierarchy consists of three levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows: 
 
• Level 1 - Valuations are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the School has the ability to access.  Valuation adjustments are not applied 
to Level 1 instruments.  Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and 
regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a 
significant degree of judgment. 

 
• Level 2 - Valuations are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which 

all significant inputs are observable, directly or indirectly. 
 

• Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the 
overall fair value measurement. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Fair Value (Continued) 
 The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of factors.  To 

the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable 
in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.  Accordingly, the degree 
of judgment exercised by the School in determining fair value is greatest for instruments 
categorized in Level 3.  In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy.  In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the level in 
the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is 
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety.  There were no changes in valuation techniques during 2023 or 2022. 

  
Property and Equipment  
Property and equipment is stated at cost or fair value at the date of donation.  It is the School’s 
policy to capitalize all additions greater than $1,000 with a useful life in excess of three years.  
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets, which range from three to ten years. 
 
Leases 
The School determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets 
represent the School’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities 
represent an obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Lease ROU assets 
and liabilities are recognized at lease commencement date based on the present value of 
lease payments over the lease term. The lease may include renewal and termination options, 
which are included in the lease term when the School is reasonably certain to exercise these 
options. 
 
For all underlying classes of assets, the School has elected to not recognize ROU assets and 
lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease 
commencement and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the School 
is reasonably certain to exercise. The School recognizes fixed short-term lease cost on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term and variable lease cost in the period in which the 
obligation is incurred. 
 
In evaluating contracts to determine if they qualify as a lease, the School considers factors 
such as if the School obtained substantially all of the rights to the underlying asset through 
exclusivity, if it can direct the use of the asset by making decisions about how and for what 
purpose the asset will be used and if the lessor has substantive substitution rights. This 
evaluation may require significant judgment. 
 
The School elected for all classes of underlying assets to not separate the lease and non-
lease components of a contract and to account for as a single lease component. 
 
The School elected for all classes of underlying assets to use the risk-free rate as the discount 
rate if the implicit rate in the lease contract is not readily determinable. 
 
Variable lease costs paid to or on behalf of the lessor, consisting primarily of utilities, custodial 
services, and property maintenance are excluded from the measurement of the ROU asset 
and lease liability and are expensed in the period incurred. 

 
Program Services   

 Regular education expenses include costs incurred in connection with the educational 
activities of the School. Special education expenses represent the cost of educating students 
with individualized education programs or those receiving special education services in the 
classroom.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Expense Allocations 
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or 
more program or supporting functions. Those expenses include personnel service costs, fringe 
benefits and payroll taxes, retirement, other purchased/professional/consulting, building and 
land rent/lease, insurance, utilities and other expenses. Personnel service costs and retirement 
are directly charged based on position. Fringe benefits and payroll taxes are allocated based 
on the percentage of personnel services costs that are charged to each function. Other 
purchased/professional/consulting, building and land rent/lease, insurance, utilities and other 
expenses are directly charged whenever possible and appropriate and otherwise are allocated 
based on square footage. 
 

 Donated Services 
 Volunteers have donated significant amounts of time in support of the School’s activities. 

However, the value of these services is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements, 
as they do not meet the criteria for recognition as set forth under GAAP.  

 
Income Taxes 
The School is exempt from income taxes as a corporation qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  The School has also been classified by the Internal Revenue 
Service as an entity that is not a private foundation. 
 
Comparative Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in 
total, but not by functional expense classification.  Such information does not include sufficient 
detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with GAAP. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, from which the summarized information was derived. 
 
Estimates 

 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 
and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 

3.  CASH AND DESIGNATED CASH 
 

Cash and designated cash, as reported on the statement of cash flows, consisted of the 
following at June 30: 

 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash  $ 1,445,337 $ 678,223 
Designated cash  100,000  100,000 
   
 $ 1,545,337 $ 778,223 
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4. LIQUIDITY 
 
At June 30, the School had financial assets available to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures one year of the statement of financial position as follows: 
 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash $ 1,445,337 $ 678,223 
Accounts receivable  118,664  66,017 
Grants receivable  488,606  998,881 
Investments  483,152  475,119 
   
 $ 2,535,759 $ 2,218,240 
 
The School is substantially supported by student enrollment and federal and state grants that 
are without contractual or donor restrictions.  As part of the School’s liquidity management, it 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other 
obligations come due.  
 
The School maintains sufficient cash that is readily available for general expenditures.  
Additionally, the School’s ability to meet its cash needs is further dependent, in part, on timely 
collection of its accounts receivable and grants receivable.  The School’s accounts receivable 
and grants receivable are due primarily from government funders, such as New York State and 
various New York State central school districts. The School employs procedures specifically 
designed to collect from these payers as quickly as possible.   

 
 
5. CONCENTRATIONS 
 
 The School’s primary source of funding is obtained from the NYSED and is reported as public 

school district revenue in the accompanying statements of activities and change in net assets.  
This funding is received on a per pupil basis and was approximately 83% and 80% of the 
School’s total revenue and support during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  

 
 
6.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  
 
 Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 
  

 2023 2022 
   
Equipment $ 792,746 $ 763,120 
Property and leasehold improvements  289,554  280,739 
   
  1,082,300  1,043,859 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation   (819,726)  (653,184) 
   
 $ 262,574 $ 390,675 

 
 Depreciation expense was $166,542 and $132,213 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 

2022, respectively.  
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7. LEASES  
 
The School leases the School building and a copier under the terms of finance lease 
agreements, which expire at various dates through 2028. The School building agreement 
contains three options to exercise additional five-year extensions that coincide with the 
School’s charter terms approved by the New York State Board of Regents. These extension 
options are not recognized as part of the ROU asset and lease liability. The School also leases 
a postage meter under the terms of an operating lease agreement which expires in 2027. 
 
The components of total lease cost for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 
Finance lease cost:  
   Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 560,177 
   Interest on lease liabilities  72,930 
Operating lease cost  104 
Variable lease cost  95,384 
   

$ 728,595 
 

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as 
follows: 

 
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:  
   Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 67,430 
   Financing cash flows from finance leases $ 499,461 
   Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 52 
  
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:  
   Finance leases $ 2,824,996 
   Operating leases $ 2,330 

 
Other information related to leases as of June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

 
Weighted-average remaining lease term:  
   Finance leases 4.01 years 
   Operating leases 3.83 years 
Weighted-average discount rate:  
   Finance leases 2.89% 
   Operating leases 3.56% 
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7. LEASES (Continued) 
 
The School’s maturities of lease liabilities are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

 
 Finance 

Leases 
Operating 

Leases 
   
2025 $ 589,093 $ 624 
2026  606,528  624 
2027  624,487  624 
2028  642,983  520 
2029  5,275  - 
   

  2,468,366  2,392 
Less: Present value discount  (137,331)  (152) 
   
Total present value of lease liabilities  2,331,035  2,240 
Less: current portion  (530,096)  (555) 
   
 $ 1,800,939 $ 1,685 
 
Rental expense was approximately $520,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Future minimum lease payments disclosed in the notes to the 2022 financial statements under 
prior lease guidance for the years succeeding 2022, were reported as follows on June 30: 

 
2023 $ 564,253 
2024  586,823 
2025  610,296 
2026  634,708 
2027  660,096 
  
 $ 3,056,176 

 
 
8. INVESTMENTS 
 

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs and consisted 
of the following at June 30: 

 
 2023 2022 
   
Cash and equivalents $ 11,169 $ 11,865 
Mutual funds  256,216  230,353 
Exchange traded funds  215,767  232,901 
   
 $ 483,152 $ 475,119 

 
Cash and equivalents, mutual funds, and exchanged traded funds are reported at fair value 
based on quoted market prices. 



13 

9. COVID-19 
 

 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 
The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER) was established and 
funded by a number of federal stimulus legislations. ESSER grants were awarded to help 
schools safely reopen and to sustain their safe operations as the schools addressed the 
COVID-19 impact on their students. 

 
During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School received ESSER funds totaling 
approximately $444,516 and $883,872, respectively, which has been recorded as a 
component of federal and state grants on the statements of activities and change in net assets. 

 
 
10. RETIREMENT PLANS 
  
 403(b) Retirement Plan 

The School sponsors a tax-sheltered annuity 403(b) retirement plan (the Plan) for all salaried 
employees.  These employees are eligible to participate in the Plan upon hiring and are vested 
in the School’s contributions upon continuation of service after the completion of one year.  
The School did not make any contributions to the Plan during the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022.  

 
New York State Teachers’ Retirement System  
The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS). This is a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system.  TRS offers a wide range of plans and 
benefits which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting of retirement 
benefits, death, and disability. TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the Retirement and Social 
Security Law of the State of New York.  TRS issues a publicly available financial report that 
contains financial statements and requirement supplementary information for the System. 
 
TRS requires employee contributions of 3% of their annual salary for the first 10 years of 
service for those employees who joined the plan between July 1976 and December 2009.  
Participants hired between January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 are required to contribution 
3.5% of their annual salary, and participants hired after April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 
between 3% and 6% of the annual salary, depending on their reportable salary.  Participants 
hired after January 1, 2010 are required to contribute throughout the active membership in 
TRS.   No employee contribution is required for those hired prior to July 1976.  Pursuant to 
Article 11 of the Education Law, an actuarially determined contribution rate is established 
annually by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board.  The rate for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, was 10.29% and 9.80% of the annual covered payroll. 
The School’s required contribution was $254,141 and $281,775 for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022, respectively.  
 

 
11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  
 Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 26, 2023, which is the date the 

financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
October 26, 2023 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of Young Women’s College Prep 
Charter School of Rochester (the School) (a New York not-for-profit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2023, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 26, 2023. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
organization’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control 
and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 



(Continued) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
October 26, 2023  
 
To the Board of Directors of 
 Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester: 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester’s 
(the School) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2023.  The School’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 
  
In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to 
above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, 
rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the School’s 
federal programs. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the School’s compliance with the 
requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the School’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of the School’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(Continued) 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued) 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023       

 
 Assistance Contract/ Expenditures 

 Listing Grant of Federal 
  Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Number Awards 
    
U.S. Department of Agriculture:    
    
 Passed through from the New York State 
   Department of Health - 

   

  National School Lunch Program  10.555 N/A $ 255,983 
    
U.S. Department of Education:    
    
 Passed through New York State Department of 
   Education: 

   

    
 Education Stabilization Fund:    
 COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School 
     Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund 

 
84.425D 

 
5891-21-4910 

 
 25,183 

    
 COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School 
    Emergency Relief (ARP ESSER) Fund 

 
84.425U 

 
5880-21-4910 

 
 419,333 

    
    Total Education Stabilization Fund    444,516 

    
 Expanding Opportunity Through Quality Charter 

School Programs (CSP) 
 

84.282 
 

T014424 
 
 49,950 

    
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies (LEA) 84.010A 0021-22-4910  248,207  

    
 Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant Title II 84.367A 0147-22-4910  28,868 
    
 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant  
    Title IV 

 
84.424A 

 
0204-22-4910 

 
 16,317 

    
 Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA  
    Funding) 

 
84.027 

 
N/A 

 
 66,527 

    
    Total U.S. Department of Education    854,385 
    
   $ 1,110,368 
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YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 
 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023       
 
 
 
1. GENERAL 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) summarizes the 
federal award activity of Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the 
School) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the School’s operations, it is not intended to, and does not, 
present the financial position, change in net assets, or cash flows of the School.  

 
 
2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
 

3. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 

The School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 
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YOUNG WOMEN’S COLLEGE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF ROCHESTER 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the
financial statements of Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester (the
School) are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

2. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies related to the audit of the School’s
financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the School, which
would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were
disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program for the
School expresses an unmodified opinion.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

7. The programs tested as major programs were:

U.S. Department of Education:

• ALN 84.425D  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ESSER) Fund 

• ALN 84.425U  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
(ARP ESSER) Fund 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

9. The School was determined to not be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM

None.
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Young Women’s College Prep Charter School of Rochester  
12 Month Calendar 2023-2024 

(184 Instructional Days, 1192 Instructional hours)

July 
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

3 4 5 6 7 

10 11 12 13 14 

17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 

31     

August 
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

 1 2 3 4 

7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 

21 22 23 24 25 

28 29 30 31  

September (19 days, 118 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 
    1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

October (21 days, 139 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

2 3 4 5 6 

9 10 11 12    13 

16 17 18 19 20 

23 24 25 26 27 

30 31    

November (18 days, 115 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

  1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 

20 21 22 23 24 

27 28 29 30  

December (16 days, 104 instructional hours) 

January (21 days, 139 instructional hours) 
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 

22 23 24 25 26 

29 30 31   

February  16 days, 106 instructional hours) 
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

   1 2 

5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 

19 20 21 22 23 

26 27 28 29  

March (20 days, 132 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 
    1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

April (16 days, 99 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 

22 23 24 25 26 

29 30    

May (21 days, 134 instructional hours) 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

  1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 

20 21 22 23 24 

27 28 29 30 31 

June (16 days, 106 instructional hours) 

  

Staff Report - August 21st Early Dismissal Days Holiday/Recess (No Students or Staff)

Superintendent’s Conference Day (No School for Students) Regents and School-level Exams 
 

September 6, 2023 All Grade Levels Report  June 25, 2024 - Last Day of School 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 
    1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

 

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri 

3 4 5 6 7 

10 11 12 13 14 

17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 
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